
OPEN SESSION 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION OF LAGUNA WOODS 

A CALIFORNIA NON-PROFIT MUTUAL BENEFIT CORPORATION 

Tuesday, December 7, 2021, 9:30 a.m. 
24351 El Toro Road, Laguna   Woods, California 

Virtual Meeting 

NOTICE OF THE AGENDA 

The purpose of this meeting is to conduct the regular Golden Rain Foundation Board Meeting in accordance with 
Civil Code §4930 and was hereby noticed in accordance with Civil Code §4920 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call Meeting to Order / Establish Quorum – President Carpenter

2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Skillman

3. Acknowledgment of Media

4. Approval of Agenda

5. Approval of Minutes
a. October 29, 2021 – Special Open Meeting
b. November 2, 2021--Regular Open Meeting
c. November 10, 2021 – 57th Organizational Meeting

6. Report of the   Chair

7. Election by Acclamation – Reza Karimi

8. CEO/COO Report

9. Open Forum (Three Minutes per Speaker)
At this time Members only may address the Board of Directors regarding items not on the agenda 
and within the jurisdiction of this Board of Directors.  The board reserves the right to limit the total 
amount of time allotted for the Open Forum to thirty minutes. A member may speak only once 
during the forum. Speakers may not give their time to other people, no audio or video recording by 
attendees, and no rude or threatening comments. Members can attend the meeting by joining the 
Zoom link https://zoom.us/j/98131257242 or call 1 (669) 900-6833 or email meeting@vmsinc.org 
to have your message read during the Open Forum.

10. Responses to Open Forum Speakers

11. Consent Calendar
All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are recommended for action by committees and will

https://zoom.us/j/98131257242
mailto:meeting@vmsinc.org


Golden Rain Foundation Regular Session 
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 of 4 
  

   
 

be enacted by the board by one motion. In the event an item is removed from the Consent Calendar 
by members of the board, such item(s) shall be the subject of further discussion and action by the 
board. 

Recommendation from the Finance Committee: 
a. Consistent with its statutory obligations a subcommittee of the board consisting of 

the Treasurer and at least one other board member reviewed and approved 
preliminary Golden Rain Foundation financials for the month of October 2021 by 
this vote ratify that such review be confirmed in this month’s Board Member Open 
Session Meeting minutes 

 
12. Unfinished Business 

a. Entertain a Motion to Approve an Outside Vendor Equestrian Center Arena 
Rental (November Initial Notification—28-day notification for member review and 
comments to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied) 
 

b. Entertain a Motion to Approve the 2022 Equestrian Center Pricing Policy and 
Chargeable Service Fees (November Initial Notification—28-day notification for 
member review and comments to comply with Civil Code §4360 has been 
satisfied) 

 
c. Entertain a Motion to Introduce a Revised GRF Investment Policy (November 

Initial Notification—28-day notification for member review and comments to 
comply with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied) 

 
d. Resolution to Update Committee Appointments 

 
13. New Business 

 
a. Entertain a Motion to Approve a Donation Agreement between GRF and Duplicate 

Bridge Club 
 

b. Entertain a Motion to Introduce a Revision to the Saddleback Emeritus Institute 
Parking Fee (DECEMBER Initial Notification—Must postpone 28-days for 
member review and comments to comply with Civil Code §4360)  
(Will be distributed under separate cover) 

 
14. The Board will take a 5-minute break (if needed) 
 
15. Committee Reports 

a.  Report of the Finance Committee/Financial Reports – Director Hopkins update 
from the committee. The committee met on October 20, 2021; next meeting 
December 15, 2021, at 1:30 p.m. in Board Room/virtual meeting. 

 
(1) GRF Treasurer’s Report – Director Hopkins 
(2) GRF Finance Committee Report 

 
b. Strategic Planning Committee—Director Dotson update from the committee. The 

committee met on June 28, 2021; next meeting TBA. 
 

c. Report of the Community Activity Committee – Director Horton update from the 



Golden Rain Foundation Regular Session 
December 7, 2021 
Page 3 of 4 
  

   
 

committee. The committee met on November 8, 2021; next meeting December 9, 
2021, at 1:30 p.m. as a virtual meeting. 

 
(1) Equestrian Center Ad Hoc Committee – President Carpenter.  The 

committee met on November 4, 2021; next meeting January 26, 2022, at 
1:00 p.m. in the Board Room and as a virtual meeting. 

 
d.  Report of the Landscape Committee – Director Horton update from the committee. 

The committee met on November 10, 2021; next meeting December 8, 2021, at 
1:30 p.m. as a virtual meeting. 

 
e.  Report of the Maintenance & Construction Committee – Director Garthoffner update 

from the committee.  The committee met on October 13, 2021 in closed session; next 
meeting December 8, 2021, at 9:30 a.m. in Board Room/virtual meeting. 

 
(1) Report of the Clubhouse Renovation Ad Hoc Committee – Director 

Garthoffner. The Committee met on September 22, 2021; next meeting 
TBA. 

 
f.  Report of the Media and Communications Committee—Director Milliman update 

from the committee. The committee met on November 17, 2021; next meeting 
December 20, 2021, at 1:30 p.m. as a virtual meeting. 

 
g.  Report of the Mobility & Vehicles Committee – Director Tibbetts update from the 

Mobility & Vehicles Committee. The Committee met on October 6, 2021; next 
meeting December 1, 2021, at 1:30 p.m. in Board Room/virtual meeting. 

 
h.  Report of the Security & Community Access Committee – Director Tibbetts update 

from the Security & Community Access Committee.  The Committee met on 
October 25, 2021; next meeting December 27, 2021, at 1:30 p.m. in Board 
Room/virtual meeting. 

 
(1)  Report of the Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings – Director Dotson. The 

Traffic Hearings were held on October 20, 2021; next hearings on December 
15, 2021, at 9:00 a.m. as a virtual meeting. 

 
i. Report of the Disaster Preparedness Task Force – President Carpenter.  The Task 

Force met on November 30, 2021; next meeting January 25, 2022, at 9:30 a.m. in 
the board room and as a virtual meeting. 
 

j.  Information Technology Advisory Committee – Director Hopkins commented that 
the Committee has been meeting in closed session.  The Committee met on 
November 18, 2021, at 1:30 p.m.; next meeting will be held on December 10, 2021 
at 1:30 p.m. as a virtual meeting.   

 
16. Future Agenda Items - All matters listed below are items for a future Board Meetings. 

No action will be taken by the Board on these agenda items at this meeting. The Board 
will vote on these items at a future Board Meeting. 

  
17. Directors’ Comments 



Golden Rain Foundation Regular Session 
December 7, 2021 
Page 4 of 4 
  

   
 

 
18. Recess - At this time, the Meeting recessed for lunch and reconvened to Executive 

Session to discuss the following matters per California Civil Code §4935: Member 
Disciplinary Matters; Personnel Matters; Contractual Matters; and Litigation Matters. 

 
 

Closed Session Agenda 
VMS Board Update 
Approved the Agenda 
Approve the Minutes of: 

(a) November 2, 2021 – Regular Closed Session 
Discuss and Consider Personnel Matters 
Discuss and Consider Contractual Matters 
Discuss Legal/Legislation Matters 
Discuss Member Disciplinary Matters 
 
19. Adjournment 



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 1 of 2



Agenda Item # 5a 
Page 2 of 2



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 1 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 2 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 3 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 4 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 5 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 6 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 7 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 8 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 9 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 10 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 11 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 12 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 13 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 14 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 15 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 16 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 17 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 18 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 19 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 20 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 21 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 22 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 23 of 24



Agenda Item # 5b 
Page 24 of 24

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



Agenda Item # 5c 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item # 5c 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item # 5c 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 5c 
Page 4 of 4



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
DATE: December 7, 2021 
FOR:  Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: Declare Candidate Reza Karimi Elected Without Vote of Corporate Members 
  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Declare candidate Reza Karimi elected to the Golden Rain Foundation (GRF) board of directors 
without a vote of the Corporate Members. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Section 8.3 of the Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods Amended Bylaws adopted January 
18, 2021, contains the election procedure to be followed during a special election to fill a 
vacancy. 
 
Section 8.3.1, Solicitation of votes, states: 
 

If more people are nominated for the Board than can be elected, the election shall take 
place by means of a procedure that allows all nominees a reasonable opportunity to 
solicit votes and all Directors of all Corporate Members a reasonable opportunity to 
choose among nominees. 

 
Section 8.3.2, Equal or fewer candidates, states:  
 

If after the close of nominations, the number of nominees is equal to or less than the 
vacancies, those nominated and qualified shall be declared elected. 

 
DISCUSSION 
In October 2021, one vacancy on the GRF board of directors resulted when incumbent Maggie 
Blackwell was elected to the United Mutual Board of Directors during their annual election. As a 
result, GRF and the Corporate Secretary administered the following schedule to fill the vacancy: 
  
October 25 - Sent out notice of the Special Corporate Members meeting to fill a vacancy 

on GRF Board of Directors 
  

October 29  -  Sent out media release calling for candidate applications 
  

November 1 - Nominations opened 
  

November 15 - Nominations closed 
 
After the close of nominations on November, 15, 2021, Reza Karimi was the only nominee for 
the vacancy. Pursuant to Section 8.3.2 of the bylaws, Mr. Karimi shall be declared elected to the 
GRF Board of Directors. 

Agenda Item # 7 
Page 1 of 4



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
Declare Candidate Elected 
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
None. 
 
Prepared By:  Siobhan Foster, COO 
    
Reviewed By:  Grant Schultz, Interim Corporate Secretary 
  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Resolution 90-21-XX  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 7 
Page 2 of 4



RESOLUTION 90-21-XX 
Declare Candidate Reza Karimi Elected Without Vote of Corporate Members 

WHEREAS, Section 8.3 of the Golden Rain Foundation (GRF) of Laguna Woods 
Amended Bylaws adopted January 18, 2021, contains the election procedure to be 
followed during a special election to fill a vacancy, and; 

WHEREAS, bylaws Section 8.3.1, Solicitation of votes, states “If more people are 
nominated for the Board than can be elected, the election shall take place by means of a 
procedure that allows all nominees a reasonable opportunity to solicit votes and all 
Directors of all Corporate Members a reasonable opportunity to choose among 
nominees;” and  

WHEREAS, bylaws Section 8.3.2, Equal or fewer candidates, states, “If after the close of 
nominations, the number of nominees is equal to or less than the vacancies, those 
nominated and qualified shall be declared elected;” and 

WHEREAS, in October 2021, one vacancy on the GRF board of directors resulted when 
incumbent Maggie Blackwell was elected to the United Mutual Board of Directors during 
their annual election; and  

WHEREAS, GRF and the Corporate Secretary administered the following schedule to fill 
the vacancy: 

− October 15, 2021: Sent out notice of Special Corporate Members meeting to fill
vacancy on GRF board of directors.

− October 29, 2021: Sent out media release calling for candidate applications.
− November 1, 2021: Nominations opened.
− November 15, 2021: Nominations closed. and;

WHEREAS, after the close of nominations on November, 15, 2021, Reza Karimi was the 
only nominee for the vacancy. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, December 7, 2021 the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation pursuant to Section 8.3.2 of the bylaws hereby declares Reza Karimi 
elected to the GRF Board of Directors. 

RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item # 7 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 7 
Page 4 of 4

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



STAFF REPORT 

DATE: December 7, 2021 
FOR:  Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: Outside Vendor Equestrian Center Arena Rental 

RECOMMENDATION 
Review and recommend board approval of the proposed outside vendor rental rates for the 
Equestrian Center to host event horse shows, clinics and individual rentals beginning January 
1, 2022. 

BACKGROUND 
On August 24, 2021 the GRF Equestrian Ad Hoc Committee held a special pricing policy and 
fee review meeting to determine fee adequacy, fair costs to boarders and revenue assumptions. 
All equestrian fees were reviewed and staff was directed to establish an outside vendor rental 
rate for the purpose of hosting horse shows and riding clinics.  

DISCUSSION
Arena rentals are common practice within the equine industry. The completed improvements to 
the Equestrian Center arena footings and future irrigation improvements will offer an appealing 
venue within the local horse community for hosting riding clinics, horse shows and other horse 
related events. Hosting these types of events would provide significant benefits such as: 

• Additional revenue source;
• Provide educational opportunities for residents to learn about horses;
• Bring a unique entertainment opportunity to the community; and
• Build goodwill with the local horse community.

Clinics are typically taught by someone who is an expert in a particular area of horsemanship. 
Clinics generally consist of up to eight lessons or rides per day and have a limited number of 
participants and an audience of auditors who observe the rides. Horse shows are a competitive 
display of the capabilities and qualities of horses and their riders or handlers, usually held as an 
annual event.  

For events and clinics, the following items are to be considered when scheduling and renting the 
facility for an event, which would be included in the rental agreement: 

• Parking:  Weekday events may use half of the Equestrian Center parking lot and is
restricted to ten trailers and 35 attendees. Weekend events are for large events and may
use the employee maintenance parking lot (adjacent to the Broadband building).

• Restrooms: During clinics and smaller events, the existing Equestrian Center restrooms
are adequate. For larger weekend events, portable restrooms will be required at the
expense of the organizer. A list of approved vendors will be provided to the applicant.
Proof of acquisition and delivery date will be required prior to the event.

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 1 of 12



• Food and beverage: The Equestrian Center does not have a permitted kitchen for a
caterer to use, nor a liquor license for alcohol sales. Any food or beverage will need to be
provided by a permitted food truck. Liquor sales are prohibited.

• Enclosures for visiting horses: The Equestrian Center has 10 outdoor pens available for
use as “day stalls” for visiting horses either as part of a full-day rental agreement or
individually for a fee to the Equestrian Center. Optional temporary stalls could be brought
in at the organizers expense and placed on the walkway adjacent to the arena on the El
Toro side.

• Contract and insurance: Proof of general liability insurance of $2,000,000 is required for
both clinics and arena events.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
The proposed fees were determined after reviewing operational costs with guidance from local 
facilities such as Chino Hills McCoy Equestrian Center (Attachment 1) and Walnut Creek 
Equestrian Center (Attachment 2). Recommended pricing accounts for staff time, arena and 
property preparation, clean up and utility usage related to event. Calculations discount for 
elements that may be lacking in our facility at this time as compared to other local facilities, such 
as shade accommodations and parking limitations.  

Proposed Fee Structure: 

*Mid-day water and drag of arena $50

Staff estimates the Equestrian Center will host four shows (two-day rental with overnight horses) 
and eight clinics (single day rental/weekend) per year with an annual revenue projection of 
$7,200. Fees will be reviewed annually and fee increases, rounded up to the nearest dollar (2-
figure fees) and nearest ten dollars (3-figure and higher fees), will be based off of the Recreation 
Departments recommendation.   

Prepared By: Laura Cobarruviaz, Equestrian Supervisor 

Reviewed By: Jennifer Murphy, Recreation Manager  
Brian Gruner, Recreation and Special Events Director 
Siobhan Foster, Chief Operating Officer 

Type Availability Time Frame Price 
Horse Shows w/ 10 Outdoor Stalls 

Mon-Fri (Per Day) 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. $650 
Sat or Sun (One Day) 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. $800 
Sat and Sun (Both Days) All Day $1,200 

Horse Clinics 
Mon-Fri (Per Day) 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. $200 
Sat or Sun (One Day) 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. $300 
Sat and Sun (Both Days) All Day $400 

Individual Day and Overnight 
Rentals 

Small Pen 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. $20 per day 
Large Pen 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. $30 per day 

Overnight 6 a.m. to 6 a.m. 
$40 small pen; 
$50 large pen 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 2 of 12



Steve Hormuth, Interim Finance Director 

Committee Routing: Community Activities Committee 
Finance Committee 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATT1: Endorsement for Outside Vendor Equestrian Center Arena Rental  
ATT2: Chino Hills McCoy Equestrian and Recreation Center pricing 
ATT3: Walnut Creek Equestrian Center pricing 
ATT4: Resolution 90-21-XX Outside Vendor Equestrian Center Arena Rental 

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 3 of 12



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 4 of 12



Golden Rain Foundation 
Finance Committee 
October 26, 2021 

ENDORSEMENT (to board) 

Outdoor Vendor Equestrian Center Arena Rental 

Jennifer Murphy, Recreation Manager, presented a staff report on Outdoor Vendor Equestrian Center 
Arena Rental. By consensus, the committee recommended that this item be presented at the next GRF 
Board for review. 

A motion was made and passed unanimously. 

ATT 1

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 5 of 12



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 6 of 12



ATT2

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 7 of 12



ATT3

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 8 of 12



Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 9 of 12



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 10 of 12



RESOLUTION 90-21-XX 
 Outside Vendor Equestrian Center Arena Rental 

WHEREAS, staff was directed to establish an outside vendor rental rate for the 
purpose of hosting horse shows and riding clinics. CAC recommended the following 
proposed fee structure, subject to affirmation by the Finance Committee and board 
approval: 

Proposed Fee Structure: 

Mid-day water and drag of arena $50 

WHEREAS, on October 14, 2021 the Community Activities Committee (CAC) 
recommended the proposed outside vendor rental rates for the Equestrian Center 
to host event horse shows, clinics and individual rentals beginning January 1, 2022, 
and; 

WHEREAS, at the October 20, 2021 Finance Committee meeting, the committee 
affirmed the CAC recommendation of the proposed outside vendor rental rates for 
the Equestrian Center to host event horse shows, clinics and individual rentals 
beginning January 1, 2022, and; 

Type Availability Time Frame Price 
Horse Shows w/10 Outdoor 
Stalls 

Mon-Fri (Per Day) 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. $650 
Sat or Sun (One Day) 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. $800 
Sat and Sun (Both Days) All Day $1,200 

Horse Clinics 
Mon-Fri (Per Day) 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. $200 
Sat or Sun (One Day) 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. $300 
Sat and Sun (Both Days) All Day $400 

Individual Day and Overnight 
Rentals 

Small Pen 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. $20 per day 
Large Pen 6 a.m. to 6 p.m. $30 per day 

Overnight 6 a.m. to 6 a.m. 
$40 small pen; 
$50 large pen 

ATT 4

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 11 of 12



NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, December 7, 2021 the Board of 
Directors of this Corporation hereby adopts recommended outside vendor rental 
rates for the Equestrian Center to host event horse shows, clinics and 
individual rentals beginning January 1, 2022; and;  

RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this 
resolution. 

(November Initial Notification—28-day notification for member review and comments to comply 
with Civil Code §4360 has been satisfied)

Agenda Item # 12a 
Page 12 of 12



STAFF REPORT

DATE: , 2021
FOR: Board of Directors
SUBJECT: 2022 Equestrian Center Pricing Policy and Chargeable Service Fees

RECOMMENDATION
Review and approve the GRF-Equestrian Ad Hoc Committee’s recommended equestrian 
service fee amendments to the current Equestrian Pricing Policy Resolution 90-20-20 to be 
effective FY 2022. 

BACKGROUND
On August 24, 2021 the GRF-Equestrian Ad Hoc Committee held a special pricing policy 
and fee review meeting for the purpose of: 

Determining adequacy of fees to offset costs;
Establish fair and consistent costs to boarders; and
Provide reliable future revenue assumptions.

All equestrian fees were reviewed and proposals were made to adjust fees in the areas of 
boarding, the riding program, non-resident boarders and services.

DISCUSSION
The current pricing policy and fees were reviewed to establish fair costs to boarders while 
providing a high level of horse care and customer service. The proposed fees were determined 
after conducting a comprehensive regional cost analysis of similar facilities such as the Nellie 
Gail Ranch Equestrian Center (Attachment 1) which is operationally closest to the Laguna 
Woods Village Equestrian Center. The proposed service fee amendments as reflected in the 
redlined GRF Equestrian Center Fees (Attachment 2) are primarily for resident/non-resident 
boarding fees, lesson fees and other service fees. The horse pellets and half an hour lesson 
programs were eliminated due to a lack of nutrition and too short of duration for set-up and 
learning, respectively.  

In addition to proposing service fee adjustments, the current GRF Equestrian Pricing Policy 
Resolution 90-20-20 was modified. Deleted and added verbiage reflected in the redlined GRF 
Pricing Policy (Attachment 3) are as follows: 

The proposed service fees, rounded up to the nearest dollar, shall be based on the
estimated monthly cost to board a resident's owned or leased horse, and 70% shared
(subsidized) by the community at large;
The proposed service fees would be adjusted annually on the basis of changes to the
operational costs, depreciation costs, and percentage shared by the community at large;
The proposed fee to store a horse trailer would be 50% of the charge for a recreational
vehicle in the RV Storage Lots; and

Agenda Item # 12
Page 1 of 12



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
2022 Equestrian Center Pricing Policy and Chargeable Service Fees 

, 2021 
Page 2 

The proposed service fees, rounded up to the nearest dollar, shall be based on the
estimated hourly cost of labor and the cost of the horse used to lead the trail ride/lesson;
and for residents, 64% shared (subsidized) by the community at large; for guests, 25%
mark up.
Added; fee increases, rounded up to the nearest dollar, would increase no more than
5% annually and be based off of the Recreation and Special Events Department
recommendation; fees will be reviewed annually.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
Based on the current and the new proposed service fees, revenue calculations project an annual 
revenue of $187,725 (Attachment 4). Revenue from feed is not included as the cost is directly 
passed on to the boarder. 

Prepared By: Jennifer Murphy, Recreation Manager 

Reviewed By: Brian Gruner, Recreation and Special Events Director 
Steve Hormuth, Interim Finance Director 
Siobhan Foster, COO 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATT 1: Endorsement for 2022 Equestrian Center Pricing Policy and Chargeable Service Fees 
ATT 2: Nellie Gail Ranch Equestrian Center 2021 Service Fees 
ATT 3: New 2022 Proposed Equestrian Fees 
ATT 4: Redline GRF Equestrian Center Pricing Policy Resolution 90-20-20 
ATT 5: 2022 Estimated Revenue Analysis 
ATT 6: Resolution 90-21-XX Equestrian Center Pricing Policy and Chargeable Service Fees 

Agenda Item # 12  
Page 2 of 12



Golden Rain Foundation 
Finance Committee 
October 26, 2021 

ENDORSEMENT (to board) 

2022 Equestrian Center Practicing Policy and Chargeable Service Fees 

Jennifer Murphy, Recreation Manager, presented the 2022 Equestrian Center Pricing and Chargeable 
Service Fees. By consensus, the committee recommended that this item be presented at the next GRF 
Board for review.  

A motion was made and passed by consensus. 

Agenda Item # 12  
Page 3 of 12



Agenda Item # 12  
Page 4 of 12



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
2022 Equestrian Center Pricing Policy and Chargeable Service Fees 

, 2021 
Page 3 

 

Agenda Item # 12
Page 5 of 12



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
2022 Equestrian Center Pricing Policy and Chargeable Service Fees

, 2021 
Page 4 

ATT 3 

New 2022 Proposed Equestrian Center Fees 

EQUESTRIAN CENTER 2021 FEES  PROPOSED  
Horse Care Services (per day) $35 No Changes 
Horse Boarding Fee (per month) $249 $265 
Shavings (per bag)* $7 $7.50 
Non-Resident Horse Boarding Fee (per month) $325 New Fee 
Non-Resident Shavings (per bag)* $8.50 New Fee 
Dry Stall (per month) $150 No Changes 
Horse Feed - Pellets $36 Eliminate 
Horse Feed - Alfalfa Hay (per month)* $51 No Changes 
Horse Feed - Teff Hay (per month)* $63 $69 
Horse Feed - Orchard Hay (per month)* $90 No Changes 
Horse Feed - Timothy Hay (per month)* $96 $99 
Resident Trail Ride on GRF Horse (45 min) $9 $15 
Resident Trail Ride on Boarded Horse (45 min) $5 No Changes 
Resident 1/2 Hour Lesson with GRF Horse $13 Eliminate 
Resident 1/2 Hour Lesson with Boarded Horse $11 Eliminate 
Resident Private Lesson with GRF Horse (45 min) $25 $30 
Resident Private Lesson with Boarded Horse (45 min) $21 $20 
Resident 1/2 Hour Group Lesson with GRF Horse $5 Eliminate 
Resident 1/2 Hour Group Lesson with Boarded Horse $3 Eliminate 
Resident Group Lesson with GRF Horse (45 min) $9 $15 
Resident Group Lesson with Boarded Horse (45 min) $5 $10 
Non-Resident Trail Ride on GRF Horse (45 min) $27 No Changes 
Non-Resident Trail Ride on Boarded Horse (45 min) $15 No Changes 
Non-Resident 1/2 Hour Lesson with GRF Horse $42 Eliminate 
Non-Resident 1/2 Hour Lesson with Boarded Horse $36 Eliminate 
Non-Resident Private Lesson with GRF Horse (45 min) $84 $55 
Non-Resident Private Lesson with Boarded Horse (45 min) $72 $35 
Non-Resident 1/2 Hour Group Lesson with GRF Horse $14 Eliminate 
Non-Resident 1/2 Hour Group Lesson with Boarded Horse $8 Eliminate 
Non-Resident Group Lesson with GRF Horse (45 min) $27 $35 
Non-Resident Group Lesson with Boarded Horse (45 min) $15 $20 
Storage, horse trailer (annually) $160 No Changes 
Non-Resident Storage, horse trailer (annually) $240 New Fee 
Hauling horse in trailer (per hour) $47.25 $50 
Hauling horse in trailer (per mile) $0.58 No Changes 
Specialty Care Services (monthly charges) 
Turnout $30 
Feeding Prepared Grain or Feed $30 
Hand Walking $150 
Lunge (charges are per occurrence) $15 
Blanketing or Fly Sheet, On & Off $60 
3rd Feeding option $30 
*Fees subject to change due to current market value

Agenda Item # 12  
Page 6 of 12



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
2022 Equestrian Center Pricing Policy and Chargeable Service Fees 

, 2021 
Page 5 

 

RESOLUTION 90-20-20  
REVISED GRF EQUESTRIAN PRICING POLICY 

WHEREAS, according to Resolution 90-12-132, which established guidelines for shared 
costs and fees, certain fees can be imposed upon users of various recreational facilities in 
order to control crowding, to minimize over-usage, and to recover operating costs; and  

WHEREAS, the Board periodically reviews fees as part of the business planning 
process to determine adequacy of revenues and shared costs and their adoption of the 
2020 Business Plan included certain fee changes;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, May 5, 2020, that the Board of Directors of the 
Corporation hereby adopts a revised GRF Pricing policy relative to the Equestrian Center. 

Horse Boarding 

• A Horse Boarding Fee shall be charged, monthly, to residents who wish to board their
horse(s) at the Equestrian Center in accordance with Exhibit “A”.

• The fee, rounded up to the nearest dollar, shall be based on the estimated monthly
cost to board a resident's owned or leased horse, and 65% 70% shared (subsidized)
by the community at large.

• The fee will be adjusted annually on the basis of changes to the operational costs,
depreciation costs, and percentage shared by the community at large.

• The GRF Board of Directors will periodically review the estimated monthly cost fees of
boarded horsesand determine what shared percentage to apply in order to maintain
an equitable and reasonable division between the user and the monthly assessment
(per Resolution 90-12132, Guidelines for Shared Costs and Fees).

• Fee increases, rounded up to the nearest dollar, will increase no more than 5%
annually and will be based off of the Recreation Department recommendation.

• The cost of feed will be fully absorbed by the resident based on their selection from
the menu of options.

Horse Trailer Storage & Horse Transportation Fees 

• If space allows, residents may store their horse trailers at the Equestrian Center.
The fee to store a horse trailer shall be 50% of the charge for a recreational vehicle
in the RV Storage Lots.

• GRF shall be reimbursed the cost of transporting a horse for a resident. The costs
include:
labor, fuel, and wear and tear on the trailer and vehicle.

Agenda Item # 12  
Page 7 of 12



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
2022 Equestrian Center Pricing Policy and Chargeable Service Fees 

 , 2021 
Page 6 

Trail Ride Fees 

• A separate fee shall be charged for trail rides for residents and their guest(s)
o The fees, rounded up to the nearest dollar, shall be based on: the estimated

hourly cost of labor and the cost of the horse used to lead the trail ride; and for
residents, 
64% shared (subsidized) by the community at 

large o for guests, 25% mark up. 
• The fee will be adjusted reviewed annually on the basis of changes to the

operational costs. depreciation costs, percentage shared by the community at
large for residents, and percentage mark up for guests.

Lesson Fees 

• Fees shall be charged for individual and group lessons for residents and their
guest(s).

• The fees, rounded up to the nearest dollar, shall be based on: the estimated hourly
cost of labor and the cost of the horse used to provide the lesson; and o for residents,
64% shared (subsidized) by the community at large o for guests, 25% mark up.

• The fee will be adjusted reviewed annually on the basis of changes to the operational
costs. depreciation costs, percentage shared by the community at large for residents,
and percentage mark up for guests.

Horse Rental Fee 

• A resident fee and a guest fee shall be charged for the use of a GRF owned
horse for lessons and trail rides.
• The fees, rounded up to the nearest dollar, shall be based on the estimated
hourly cost of a GRF owned horse; and o for residents, 64% shared (subsidized) by
the community at large o for guests, 25% mark up.
• The fee will be adjusted reviewed annually on the basis of changes to the
operational costs. depreciation costs, percentage shared by the community at large
for residents, and percentage mark up for guests.

RESOLVED FURTHER, January 1, 2020, at which time, retroactive billing for the 2020 
storage fees will occur, that Resolution 90-20-12 adopted March 3, 2020, is hereby 
superseded and canceled and replaced by resolution dated October 5, 2021; and  

RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are directed on 
behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution.  

APRIL Initial Notification 
28-day notification for member review and comment to comply with Civil Code Section 4360 has been satisfied.

Director Garthoffner made a motion to adopt a resolution to revise GRF equestrian pricing 
policy. Director English seconded the motion. Discussion ensued among the directors.  

Agenda Item # 12  
Page 8 of 12



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
2022 Equestrian Center Pricing Policy and Chargeable Service Fees 

, 2021 
Page 7 

Attachment 5 

Estimated
 
 Revenue 

EQUESTRIAN CENTER FEES PROPOSED 
2022 Fees 

Average 
# 

Horses 

Ave 
Monthly 

Occurrence 
Annual 

Occurrences 

Annual 
Rev 

Estimate 

Ave 
Monthly 

Rev 
Estimate 

Horse Care Services (per day) $35 0.5 X                183  $6,405 $533 
Horse Boarding Fee (per month) $265 22 1                264  $69,960 $5,830 
Non-Resident Horse Boarding Fee $325 8 1 96  $31,200 $2,600 
Dry Stall $150 2 1 24  $3,600 $300 
Shavings (per bag)* $7.50          22                 30                 660  $4,950 $413 
Non-Resident Shavings $8.50             8                  30                 240  $2,040 $170 
Resident Trail Ride on GRF Horse (45 min) $15 X 8 96 $1,440 $120 
Resident Trail Ride on Boarded Horse (45 min) $5 X 24 288 $1,440 $120 
Resident Private Lesson with GRF Horse (45 min) $30 X 24 288 $8,640 $720 
Resident Private Lesson with Boarded Horse (45 min) $20 X 8 96 $1,920 $160 
Resident Group Lesson with GRF Horse (45 min) $15 X 100 1200 $18,000 $1,500 
Resident Group Lesson with Boarded Horse (45 min) $10 X 0 0 $0 $0 
Non-Resident Trail Ride on GRF Horse (45 min) $27 X 0 0 $0 $0 
Non-Resident Trail Ride on Boarded Horse (45 min) $15 X 4 48 $720 $60 
Non-Resident Private Lesson with GRF Horse (45 min) $55 X 0 0 $0 $0 
Non-Resident Private Lesson with Boarded Horse (45 min) $35 X 8 96 $3,360 $280 
Non-Resident Group Lesson with GRF Horse (45 min) $35 X 40 480 $16,800 $1,400 
Non-Resident Group Lesson with Boarded Horse (45 min) $20 X 0 0 $0 $0 
Storage, horse trailer (annually) $160 X 5 5 $800 $67 
Non-Resident Storage, horse trailer $240 X 1 1 $240 $20 
Hauling horse in trailer (per hour) $50 X X 18 $900 $75 
Hauling horse in trailer (per mile) $0.58 X X 1,080 $626 $52 
Specialty Services (charges shown are monthly) 
Turnout $30 17 1                204  $6,120 $510 
Feeding Prepared Grain or Feed $30 2 1 24  $720 $60 
Hand Walking (charges are per occurrence) $5 17 1                204  $1,020 $85 
Lunge (charges are per occurrence) $15 8 1 96  $1,440 $120 
Blanketing or Fly Sheet, On & Off $60 3 1 36  $2,160 $180 
3rd Feeding option $30 9 1                108  $3,240 $270 
Total $187,741 $15,645 

EQUESTRIAN CENTER – 2022 REVENUE PROJECTION  
Horse Boarding Fees $69,960 
Sponsored Boarding Fees $31,200 
Dry Stall $3,600 
Horse Care Services $6,405 
Resident Shavings $4,950 
Non-Resident Shavings $2,040 
Rides and Lessons $52,320 
Trailer Storage and Hauling $2,566 

Agenda Item # 12  
Page 9 of 12



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
2022 Equestrian Center Pricing Policy and Chargeable Service Fees 

 , 2021 
Page 8 

Turnout $6,120 
Feeding Prepared Grain or Feed $720 
Hand Walking $1,020 
Lunge (charges are per occurrence) $1,440 
Blanketing or Fly Sheet, On & Off $2,160 
3rd Feeding option $3,240 
Total Revenue $187,741 

Agenda Item # 12  
Page 10 of 12



RESOLUTION 90-21-XX 
2022 Equestrian Center Pricing Policy and Chargeable Service Fees 

WHEREAS, the current pricing policy and fees were reviewed to establish fair costs 
to boarders while providing a high level of horse care and customer service. The 
proposed fees were determined after conducting a comprehensive regional cost 
analysis of similar facilities. CAC recommended the following proposed Equestrian 
Center Fees, subject to affirmation by the Finance Committee and board approval: 

New 2022 Proposed Equestrian 
Center Fees 

EQUESTRIAN CENTER 2021 FEES PROPOSED 
Horse Care Services (per day) $35 No Changes 
Horse Boarding Fee (per month) $249 $265 
Shavings (per bag)* $7 $7.50 
Non-Resident Horse Boarding Fee $325 New Fee 
Non-Resident Shavings $8.50 New Fee 
Dry Stall $150 No Changes 
Horse Feed - Pellets $36 Eliminate 
Horse Feed - Alfalfa Hay* $51 No Changes 
Horse Feed - Teff Hay* $63 $69 
Horse Feed - Orchard Hay* $90 No Changes 
Horse Feed - Timothy Hay* $96 $99 
Resident Trail Ride on GRF Horse (45 min) $9 $15 
Resident Trail Ride on Boarded Horse (45 min) $5 No Changes 
Resident 1/2 Hour Lesson with GRF Horse $13 Eliminate 
Resident 1/2 Hour Lesson with Boarded Horse $11 Eliminate 
Resident Private Lesson with GRF Horse (45 min) $25 $30 
Resident Private Lesson with Boarded Horse (45 min) $21 $20 
Resident 1/2 Hour Group Lesson with GRF Horse $5 Eliminate 
Resident 1/2 Hour Group Lesson with Boarded Horse $3 Eliminate 
Resident Group Lesson with GRF Horse (45 min) $9 $15 
Resident Group Lesson with Boarded Horse (45 min) $5 $10 
Non-Resident Trail Ride on GRF Horse (45 min) $27 No Changes 
Non-Resident Trail Ride on Boarded Horse (45 min) $15 No Changes 
Non-Resident 1/2 Hour Lesson with GRF Horse $42 Eliminate 
Non-Resident 1/2 Hour Lesson with Boarded Horse $36 Eliminate 
Non-Resident Private Lesson with GRF Horse (45 min) $84 $55 
Non-Resident Private Lesson with Boarded Horse (45 min) $72 $35 
Non-Resident 1/2 Hour Group Lesson with GRF Horse $14 Eliminate 
Non-Resident 1/2 Hour Group Lesson with Boarded Horse $8 Eliminate 
Non-Resident Group Lesson with GRF Horse (45 min) $27 $35 

Agenda Item # 12  
Page  of 12



Non-Resident Group Lesson with Boarded Horse (45 min) $15 $20 
Storage, horse trailer (annually) $160 No Changes 
Non-Resident Storage, horse trailer (annually) $240 New Fee 
Hauling horse in trailer (per hour) $47.25 $50 
Hauling horse in trailer (per mile) $0.58 No Changes 
Specialty Care Services (monthly charges) 
Turnout $30 
Feeding Prepared Grain or Feed $30 
Hand Walking $150 
Lunge (charges are per occurrence) $15 
Blanketing or Fly Sheet, On & Off $60 
3rd Feeding option $30 

*Fees subject to change due to current market value

WHEREAS, on September 9, 2021 the Community Activities Committee (CAC) 
recommended the GRF Equestrian Ad Hoc Committee’s proposed equestrian 
service fee amendments to the current Equestrian Pricing Policy Resolution 90-20-
20 to be effective FY 2022, and; 

WHEREAS, at the October 20, 2021 Finance Committee meeting, the committee 
affirmed the CAC recommendation of the equestrian service fee amendments to 
the current Equestrian Pricing Policy Resolution 90-20-20 to be effective FY 2022, 
and; 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, November 2, 2021 the Board of Directors 
of this Corporation hereby adopts recommended GRF Equestrian Ad Hoc 
Committee’s recommended equestrian service fee amendments to the current 
Equestrian Pricing Policy Resolution 90-20-20 to be effective FY 2022; and;  

RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

Agenda Item # 12  
Page  of 12



STAFF REPORT

DATE: , 2021
FOR: Board of Directors
SUBJECT: Investment Policy Change

RECOMMENDATION
The Finance Committee recommends the Golden Rain Foundation board approve Resolution 
90-21-xx (ATT1) to adopt the revised Investment Policy further clarifying the purpose of the
policy and authority of both the Managing Agent and Investment Advisor.

BACKGROUND
On November 5, 2019, the board approved the current Golden Rain Foundation Investment 
Policy through Resolution 90-19-53, inclusive of the modification allowing for bond index funds. 
In early 2021 members of the community challenged the policy and expressed their disapproval 
over an interpretation of the policy. The Finance Committee acknowledged an edit to the policy’s 
wording would provide added clarity and therefore engaged GRF’s legal counsel to review the 
policy and recommend changes.

DISCUSSION
GRF legal counsel met with members of the GRF board and VMS staff during October 2021 to 
review the existing Investment Policy. From that review legal counsel drafted a revised 
Investment Policy (ATT1) for the review and adoption by the board. Additionally, a redlined 
version (ATT2) of the policy was provided detailing the changes from the prior version. On 
October 21, 2021 the GRF Finance Committee approved the resolution.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
No added cost or savings will be incurred from the proposed changes to the Investment Policy.

Prepared By: Steve Hormuth, Controller

Reviewed By: Jose Campos, Interim Financial Services Manager

Attachments:
ATT1 – GRF Investment Policy Resolution
ATT2 – GRF Investment Policy Resolution (Redlined)

Agenda Item # 12
Page 1 of 8



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Agenda Item # 12
Page 2 of 8



RESOLUTION 90-21-XX 

GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION INVESTMENT POLICY 

BE IT RESOLVED, 2021, this Corporation, is hereby 
authorized to invest the funds of the Corporation. All investments on 
behalf of this Corporation must be made with the underlying principles in 
the following order of priority: (1) safety, (2) liquidity, where applicable, 
and (3) yield, and are subject to the following conditions: 

NON-DISCRETIONARY INVESTMENTS 

RESOLVED FURTHER; Funds administered by the corporation’s managing 
agent (“Managing Agent”) must be invested in a “non-discretionary” account 
in accordance with the provisions of Civil Code §5380. Authorized investments 
administered by the Managing Agent are limited to obligations of, or fully 
guaranteed as to principal by, the United States of America.  

RESOLVED FURTHER; No non-discretionary investment may be sold, 
withdrawn, redeemed or otherwise converted to cash prior to maturity without 
a demonstrated immediate need for the funds and the consent of any two of 
the following: the Treasurer, the President or the 1st or 2nd Vice President of 
this corporation. Furthermore, if there is a request that a non-discretionary 
investment be sold, withdrawn or otherwise converted to cash prior to maturity 
where there has been no demonstrated immediate need, approval must be 
provided by the Board of Directors of this Corporation. 

DISCRETIONARY INVESTMENTS 

RESOLVED FURTHER; in accordance with Civil Code §5515, the Board of 
this corporation has an obligation to exercise prudent fiscal management in 
preserving reserve funds (“discretionary investments”). The funds being 
invested as discretionary investments under this Investment Policy are not 
required within a reasonable time to pay obligations of the Corporation. The 
Board will determine the amount to be managed in this discretionary account  

RESOLVED FURTHER; the Board is required to retain an Investment 
Manager who has discretion to transact purchases and sales of investments 
for Golden Rain Foundation’s discretionary funds account. Such discretion is 
subject to the underlying conditions as stated below; 

1. Up to 30% of the portfolio may be invested in Corporate Bonds and
Corporate Bond Funds rated BBB through AAA; specifically, Baa3/BBB-
/BBB- or better by Moody’s/S&P/Fitch. A bond is only required to meet the

Agenda Item # 12  
Page 3 of 8



criteria of one rating service. If a bond or bond within the fund does not 
meet these minimum credit quality criteria in at least one of the above-
mentioned rating services, the bond may not be purchased or if owned, 
must be removed from the portfolio within 30 days. This removal criteria 
will not apply to bond mutual funds that have a stated objective of 
investing in investment grade rated bonds. Removal of downgraded bonds 
that fall below the investment grade rating will be determined by the fund 
manager. 

2. No more than 3% of portfolio is to be invested in any one corporate bond
issuer;

3. Up to 25% of the portfolio may be invested in funds comprised of
Government Sponsored Federal Agencies, namely FNMA (Federal
National Mortgage Association – Fannie Mae), FHLMC (Federal Home
Loan Mortgage Corporation – Freddie Mac, and FHLB (Federal Home
Loan Bank).

4. Notification of confirmation of each investment transaction shall be
given to the Corporation’s Managing Agent and treasurer of this
Corporation upon completion;

5. Investments on behalf of this Corporation may be made concurrently
with investments made on behalf of other corporations at Laguna
Woods Village. However, separate investment receipts will be held in
the name of this Corporation. Any such investments may be held for
the account of the Corporation in book-entry form;

Agenda Item # 12  
Page 4 of 8

RESOLVED FURTHER; that any authorized investments into the 
discretionary funds previously made by said Investment Manager, are hereby 
ratified.  

RESOLVED FURTHER; that Resolution 90-19-53 adopted on November 5, 
2019, is hereby superseded and cancelled. 

RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution. 



1 

RESOLUTION 90-19-53_____ 

GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION INVESTMENT POLICY 

BE IT RESOLVED, November 5, 2019, that the Managing Agent of this 
corporation, and an outside Investment Manager are_________2021, this 
Corporation, is hereby authorized to invest the funds of the corporation which, 
in the opinion of said managing agent are not required within a reasonable 
time to pay obligations of the corporation; and 
Corporation  All 
RESOLVED FURTHER; that the Board of Directors of this Corporation hereby 
authorizes the Managing Agent of this corporation, to retain an Investment 
Manager and to give that Manager discretion to transact purchases and sales 
of investments for Golden Rain Foundation’s account. Such discretion is 
subject to the underlying conditions as stated below. The Board will determine 
the amount to be managed in this discretionary account; and 

RESOLVED FURTHER, that all investments on behalf of this 
corporationCorporation must be made with the underlying principles in the 
following order of priority: (1) safety, (2) liquidity, where applicable, and (3) 
yield, and are subject to the following conditions: 

NON-DISCRETIONARY INVESTMENTS 

1. RESOLVED FURTHER; Notification of confirmation shall be given to the
managing agent and treasurer of this corporation upon completion of each
investment transaction;

2. For fundsFunds administered by the corporation’s managing agent
(“Managing Agent”) must be invested in a “non-discretionary” account in
accordance with the provisions of Civil Code §5380. Authorized investments
administered by the Managing Agent are limited to obligations of, or fully
guaranteed as to principal by, the United States of America.

RESOLVED FURTHER, no; No non-discretionary investment may be sold, 
withdrawn, redeemed or otherwise converted to cash prior to maturity without 
a demonstrated immediate need for the funds and the consent of any two of 
the following: the Treasurer, the President or the 1st or 2nd Vice President of 
this corporation. Furthermore, if there is a request that ana non-discretionary 
investment be sold, withdrawn or otherwise converted to cash prior to maturity 
where there has been no demonstrated immediate need, approval must be 
received fromprovided by the Board of Directors of this 
corporation;Corporation. 

Agenda Item # 12  
Page 5 of 8



2 

3. Funds shall be invested only in authorized investments as provided herein.
Authorized investments are limited to:

a. Obligations of, or fully guaranteed as to principal by, the United States
of America;

b. DISCRETIONARY INVESTMENTS

RESOLVED FURTHER; in accordance with Civil Code §5515, the Board of 
this corporation has an obligation to exercise prudent fiscal management in 
preserving reserve funds (“discretionary investments”). The funds being 
invested as discretionary investments under this Investment Policy are not 
required within a reasonable time to pay obligations of the Corporation. The 
Board will determine the amount to be managed in this discretionary account  

RESOLVED FURTHER; the Board is required to retain an Investment 
Manager who has discretion to transact purchases and sales of investments 
for Golden Rain Foundation’s discretionary funds account. Such discretion is 
subject to the underlying conditions as stated below; 

1. Up to 30% of the portfolio may be invested in Corporate Bonds and
Corporate Bond Funds rated BBB through AAA; specifically, Baa3/BBB-
/BBB- or better by Moody’s/S&P/Fitch. A bond is only required to meet the
criteria of one rating service. If a bond or bond within the fund does not
meet these minimum credit quality criteria in at least one of the above-
mentioned rating services, the bond may not be purchased or if owned,
must be removed from the portfolio within 30 days. This removal criteria
will not apply to bond mutual funds that have a stated objective of
investing in investment grade rated bonds. Removal of downgraded bonds
that fall below the investment grade rating will be determined by the fund
manager.

c. 2. No more than 3% of portfolio is to be invested in any one corporate 
bond issuer; and 

d3. Up to 25% of the portfolio may be invested in funds comprised of 
Government Sponsored Federal Agencies, namely FNMA (Federal 
National Mortgage Association – Fannie Mae), FHLMC (Federal Home 
Loan Mortgage Corporation – Freddie Mac, and FHLB (Federal Home 
Loan Bank). 

4. Notification of confirmation of each investment transaction shall be
given to the Corporation’s Managing Agent and treasurer of this
Corporation upon completion;

Agenda Item # 12  
Page 6 of 8



3 

5. Investments on behalf of this corporationCorporation may be made
concurrently with investments made on behalf of other corporations at
Laguna Woods Village. However, separate investment receipts will be
held in the name of this corporationCorporation. Any such investments
may be held for the account of the corporationCorporation in book-entry
form;

5. AnyRESOLVED FURTHER; that any authorized investments, as
defined in Item 3 above, into the discretionary funds previously made by said
Managing Agent or Investment Manager, are hereby ratified; and.

RESOLVED FURTHER; that Resolution 90-16-2219-53 adopted on June 7, 
2016November 5, 2019, is hereby superseded and cancelled. 

RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution. 

Agenda Item # 12  
Page 7 of 8



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Agenda Item # 12
Page 8 of 8



RESOLUTION 90-21-xx 
GRF Committee Appointments 

 
RESOLVED, December 7, 2021, that the following persons are hereby  
appointed and ratified to serve on the Committees of this Corporation: 

 
Strategic Planning Committee    
Debbie Dotson, Chair (GRF) 
James Hopkins (GRF) 
Gan Mukhopadhyay, Alternate (GRF)  
Robert Mutchnick (Third) 
Nathaniel Ira Lewis (Third) 
Anthony Liberatore (United) 
Cash Achrekar (United)  
Ryna Rothberg (Mutual 50) 
Advisor: Dick Rader 

 
Community Activities Committee 
 Yvonne Horton, Chair (GRF) 
Elsie Addington (GRF) 
Deborah Dotson, Alternate (GRF)  
Bunny Carpenter, Alternate (GRF) 
Annie McCary (Third)  
Cush Bhada (Third) 
Diane Casey (United) 
Pearl Lee (United) 
Ryna Rothberg, (Mutual 50) 
Advisor: Roland Boudreau, Juanita Skillman 
 

Equestrian Center Ad Hoc Committee 
Bunny Carpenter, Chair (GRF) 
Yvonne Horton (GRF) 
Cush Bhada (Third) 
Annie McCary, (Third) 
Advisors: Gary Empfield, Susan Hemberger 
 
Revenue Resources Ad Hoc Committee   
Yvonne Horton, Chair (GRF) 
Bunny Carpenter (GRF) 

 
Finance Committee 
James Hopkins, Chair (GRF) 
Elsie Addington (GRF) 
Gan Mukhopadhyay, Alternate (GRF)  
Deborah Dotson, Alternate (GRF) 
Donna Rane-Szostak (Third) 
Mark Laws (Third) 
Azar Asgari (United) 
Diane Casey, Alternate (United)  
Anthony Liberatore (United) Agenda Item # 12d 

Page 1 of 4



Al Amado, (Mutual 50) 
Sue Stephens, Alternate (Mutual 50) 
Advisor: Rosemarie diLorenzo 

Information Technology Advisory Committee (ITAC) 
James Hopkins, Chair (GRF) 
Bunny Carpenter, Alternate (GRF)  
 Deborah Dotson (GRF)  
Diane Casey (United) 
Lynn Jarrett (Third) 
Mark Laws (Third) 
Advisor: Sue Margolis 

Landscape Committee  
Juanita Skillman, Chair (GRF) 
Reza Karimi (GRF)  
Yvonne Horton Alternate (GRF)  
Maggie Blackwell (United) 
Pat English (United) 

 Lynn Jarrett, (Third) 
Nathaniel Ira Lewis (Third) 
Annie McCary, Alternate (Third) 
Manuel Armendariz, (United) 
Azar Asgari, Alternate (United) 
Vacant (Mutual 50) 

Maintenance & Construction Committee 
Egon Garthoffner, Chair (GRF) 
Gan Mukhapadhyay (GRF)  
Deborah Dotson, Alternate (GRF)  

       Reza Karimi, Alternate (GRF) 
James Cook (Third) 
Cush Bhada, Alternate (Third) 
Ralph Engdahl (Third)  
Pat English (United) 
Reza Bastani, Alternate (United)  
Sue Stephens (Mutual 50) 
Advisor: Richard Palmer, Steve Leonard, Bill Walsh, Carl Randazzo 

Clubhouse Renovation Ad Hoc Committee 
Egon Garthoffner, Chair (GRF) 
Gan Mukhopadhyay (GRF) 
Deborah Dotson (GRF) 
Reza Karimi (GRF) 
John Frankel (Third) 
 Cush Bhada, Alternate (Third) 
Ralph Engdahl (Third)  
Manuel Armendariz (United)  
Diane Casey (United) 
Maggie Blackwell (United) 
Advisors: Steve Leonard, Bill Walsh, Cathy Garris Agenda Item # 12d 

Page 2 of 4



Media and Communications 
Joan Milliman, Chair (GRF) 
Juanita Skillman (GRF) 
Maggie Blackwell (United) 
Deborah Dotson, Alternate (GRF) 
Annie McCary (Third) 
James Cook (Third) 
Neda Ardani (United) 
Ryna Rothberg, (Mutual 50) 
Advisors: Carmen Pacella, Tom Nash, Juanita Skillman, Lucy Parker 
Theresa Frost 

 
Broadband Ad Hoc Committee 
Joan Milliman, Chair (GRF) 
Jim Hopkins (GRF) 
Jon Pearlstone (GRF) 
Debbie Dotson (GRF) 

 Annie McCary (Third)  
 

Mobility & Vehicles Committee 
Don Tibbetts, Chair (GRF)  
Egon Garthoffner (GRF) 
Elsie Addington, Alternate (GRF) 
Joan Milliman, Alternate (GRF)  
James Cook (Third) 
Maggie Blackwell (United) 
Pearl Lee (United) 
Margaret Bennett (Mutual 50)  
Sue Stephens, Alternate (Mutual 50) 
Advisor: Vashi Williams 

 
Security and Community Access 
Don Tibbetts, Chair (GRF)  
Annie McCary (Third) 
Craig Wayne (Third) 
Donna Rane-Szostak, Alternate (Third)  
Cash Achrekar (United) 
Reza Bastani (United) 
Sue Stephens (Mutual 50) 
 Margaret Bennett, Alternate (Mutual 50) 

 
OTHER COMMITTEES: 

 
Disaster Preparedness Task Force 
Carlos Rojas, Chair  
Juanita Skillman (GRF)  
Gan Mukhapadhyay (GRF) 
James Cook (Third) 
John Frankel (Third) 
Donna Rane-Szostak, Alternate (Third) 
Diane Casey (United) Agenda Item # 12d 

Page 3 of 4



Anthony Liberatore (United) 
John Carter (Mutual 50) 
 Advisors: Tom Soule, Bruce Bonbright 

 
Laguna Woods Village Traffic Hearings 
(Chair will alternate between Boards) 
Yvonne Horton (GRF) 
Elsie Addington (GRF) 
Deborah Dotson, Alternate (GRF)  
John Frankel (Third) 
Donna Rane-Szostak, Alternate (Third) 
Neda Ardani (United) 
Anthony Liberatore, Alternate (United) 
Board Members by Rotation (Mutual 50) 

 
Purchasing Ad Hoc Committee 
Bunny Carpenter, Chair (GRF)  
Jim Hopkins (GRF) 
Yvonne Horton (GRF) 
Robert Mutchnick (Third) 
Donna Rane-Szostak (Third) 
Ralph Engdahl, Alternate (Third)  
Cash Achrekar (United) 
Diane Casey (United) 
Advisor:  Carl Randazzo 

 
Select Audit Task Force 
James Hopkins (GRF) 
Diane Phelps (VMS) 
Elizabeth Roper (United) 
Peggy Moore (Third) 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 90-21-43 adopted November 2, 2021, is 
hereby superseded and cancelled; and 

 
RESOLVE FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are 
hereby authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out this resolution. 

Agenda Item # 12d 
Page 4 of 4



Golden Rain Foundation 
Community Activities Community 
October 14, 2021 
 
 
ENDORSEMENT (to Board of Directors) 
 
Repainting Clubhouse 7 Bridge Room North and South Facing Interior Walls 
 
Authorize the Community Activities Committee recommendation to review and recommend board 
approval of the Duplicate Bridge club’s request to repaint the interior north and south facing walls of 
the Clubhouse 7 bridge room at club expense. 
 
A motion was made to recommend approval of the Duplicate Bridge club’s request to repaint 
the interior north and south facing walls of the Clubhouse 7 bridge room at club expense. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 1 of 10



Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 2 of 10

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



 
 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

DATE: December 7, 2021 
FOR:  Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: Repainting the Clubhouse 7 Bridge Room North and South Facing Interior 

Walls 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Board approve a resolution of the Duplicate Bridge club’s request to 
repaint the interior north and south facing walls of the Clubhouse 7 bridge room (Attachment 1).  
 
BACKGROUND  
The Clubhouse 7 bridge room is a large open floor room with 60 bridge tables and a kitchen.  
The Duplicate and Progressive Bridge clubs host social games, tournaments, meetings and 
banquets with an annual utilization of approximately 48,000 users. 
 
On June 7, 2016, the board approved a supplemental appropriation for the Clubhouse 7 Bridge 
room carpet replacement project. In addition, on September 5, 2017 the board approved the 
Clubhouse 7 kitchen modifications project as part of the adopted 2018 Capital Plan. The carpet 
installation and kitchen remodel projects began January 29, 2018. The painting of the north and 
south walls was not included in the renovation projects.  
 
DISCUSSION  
On September 9, 2021 the Duplicate Bridge club attended the CAC meeting and formally 
requested approval to repaint the north and south interior walls of the bridge room. The 
committee directed staff to develop a staff report and provide a recommendation.  
 
On October 14, 2021 the Community Activity Committee recommended the Duplicate Bridge 
club’s request to repaint the interior north and south facing walls of the Clubhouse 7 bridge room 
subject to board approval. 
 
This request meets requirements set forth in accordance with GRF Donation Policy resolution 
90-20-21 adopted May 5, 2020. 
 
The color enhancement of the walls would enhance the ambience and aesthetics of this large 
room. The suggested color choices are Behr Polar Bear or Behr Moonlit Beach (Attachment 2).  
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
The VMS Painting Division reviewed the scope of the project and estimates $680 for materials, 
supplies and labor (Attachment 3). If approved, the Duplicate Bridge club will pay for the 
repainting at no cost to GRF.      
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 3 of 10



GRF Board of Directors 
Repainting the Clubhouse 7 Bridge Room North and South Facing Interior Walls  
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 
 
Prepared By:  Jennifer Murphy, Recreation Manager   
 
 
Reviewed By:  Brian Gruner, Recreation and Special Events Director 

Siobhan Foster, Chief Operating Officer 
 

 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATT 1: Image - North and South Bridge room walls 
ATT 2: Polar Bear and Moonlit Beach Paint Color Samples 
ATT 3: VMS Paint Division Quote 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 4 of 10



GRF Board of Directors 
Repainting the Clubhouse 7 Bridge Room North and South Facing Interior Walls  
December 7, 2021 
Page 3 
 

 
 

Attachment 1 
 
North Wall 
 

 
 
 
South Wall 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 5 of 10



GRF Board of Directors 
Repainting the Clubhouse 7 Bridge Room North and South Facing Interior Walls  
December 7, 2021 
Page 4 
 

 
Attachment 2 

 
 

Polar Bear White  
 

 
 

 
Moonlight Beach  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 6 of 10



GRF Board of Directors 
Repainting the Clubhouse 7 Bridge Room North and South Facing Interior Walls  
December 7, 2021 
Page 5 
 
 
 

Attachment 3 

 

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 7 of 10



Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 8 of 10

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



RESOLUTION 90-21-XX 
Donation Agreement between GRF and Duplicate Bridge Club 

This Agreement, entered into this 7th day of December, 2021, is by and between the 
Golden Rain Foundation (“GRF”), a California non‐profit mutual benefit corporation and 
Duplicate Bridge Club (“Donor”). 

WHEREAS, GRF and Donor recognize the important of community facilities and 
amenities; and  

WHEREAS, GRF and Donor acknowledge the benefit of donations when they have a 
purpose consistent with GRF goals and are in the best interest of Laguna Woods Village; 

WHEREAS, the Donor has offered to donate the funds totaling approximately $680 
to have the Clubhouse 7 bridge room repainted using VMS staff;   

WHEREAS, the Recreation Department Director or COO reviewed and affirms the 
proposed donation meets the criteria for acceptance contained in the GRF Donation 
Policy:  

a. Meet a true need of the facility;
b. Not interfere with the intended current or future use of the facility; and
c. Not require the relocation of other equipment or infrastructure to
accommodate the donation.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, December 7, 2021 that GRF and Donor in 
accordance with the described conditions and obligations, hereinafter set forth and agree 
as follows:  
Section 1 The donation, known as Duplicate Bridge Club funding of Clubhouse 7 

bridge room repainting, described below, is donated in its entirety to GRF, 
hereafter owned by GRF and managed on behalf of the residents of 
Laguna Woods Village by Village Management Services, Inc. (VMS)  

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 9 of 10



Section 2 Donation description: funding of cost to repaint the Clubhouse 7 bridge 
room north and south walls 
Space of facility: Bridge Room 
Location: Clubhouse 7 
Additional information:   

Section 3 Amount of Donation (estimated by VMS Painting Division) 
Item cost: $118.90 
Installation cost: $561.15 
Maintenance cost:  $0.00 

Total estimated donation:  $680.05 

Section 5 GRF reserves the right to move/remove and/or retire the donation 
following cessation of the five-year period. The term shall commence 
upon the date entered into and indicated above.  

Section 6 GRF will not replace the donation or community space improvement if 
it is stolen, vandalized, worn out, irreparably damaged, destroyed or 
expires.  

Section 7 Installation and Maintenance: GRF shall be responsible for installation 
and maintenance of the item, including any reasonable repairs.   

Section 8 Term: The term of this agreement is a minimum of five years or beyond, 
if applicable.   

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this corporation are hereby 
authorized to carry out this resolution as written.   

Agenda Item # 13a 
Page 10 of 10



 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
 
DATE: December 7, 2021 
FOR:  Board of Directors 
SUBJECT: Saddleback College Emeritus Institute Parking Fees  
   
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends the GRF Board of Directors approve resolution 90-21-XX (Saddleback 
College Emeritus Institute Parking Fee) authorizing GRF to change non-resident parking fees 
equivalent to mirror District campus parking fees. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 

The Emeritus Institute has provided free higher education classes to Laguna Woods Village 
residents and non-residents for over 35 years. The institute’s mission is to “promote lifelong 
learning by providing academically rigorous, mentally stimulating, socially engaging, and health 
improving courses for older adults throughout South Orange County.” 
 
Resolution 90-19-49 (Attachment 1) was adopted October 1, 2019 which stated that the Board 
of Directors of this Corporation hereby implements a Student Parking Pass Fee of $50 per 
semester ($30 for summer semester) for non-resident students who take Saddleback College 
Emeritus Institute courses in Laguna Woods Village, effective with the Spring Semester 2020 
enrollment. 
 
At the December 6, 2021 closed session GRF meeting, the Board will consider the South 
Orange County Community College District (SOCCCD) Emeritus Institute Facility Use 
Agreement Emeritus Institute Facility Use Agreement for the period of January 1, 2022 to 
December 31, 2026 which includes a reduction in parking fees to $40 for fall/spring semesters 
and $25 for summer sessions.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 

Pursuant to the new agreement with SOCCCD, the current non-resident parking fee resolution 
90-19-49 is subject to supersede and cancellation to reflect the proposed college parking fee 
of $40 per regular semester and $25 for the summer session; subject to change each 
semester as per SOCCCD campus parking fees;  
 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 

GRF is responsible to pay for all the equipment maintenance, repair and utility costs 
associated with the Emeritus classes. In 2019, GRF received $44,135 from non-resident 
parking fees and the intellectual benefit of having free educational classes for Laguna Woods 
Village residents. The new contract agreement coincides with the District campus parking fee 
of $40 for the fall/spring semesters and $25 for the summer session.   
 

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 1 of 4



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
Saddleback College Emeritus Institute Parking Fees 
December 7, 2021 
Page 2 

Due to operational changes, in person enrollment for the spring 2022 semester classes in 
Laguna Woods Village is considerably lower than in previous years. Current enrollment has 
1,100 students registered. The 2019 spring semester had approximately 2,700 students 
registered of which 1,500 were non-residents.   

It is estimated that 500 of the current 1,100 enrolled students are non-residents and will need 
to purchase a parking pass providing $20,000 ($40x500) in revenue for the spring semester.  
Additionally, the District has agreed to pay labor fees for in person classes that require room 
set-ups. The current schedule has nine chargeable classes; therefore, the spring semester 
revenue is projected to be $3,366 ($22 labor rate x 9 classes x 17 weeks of instruction).   

Total fall and spring semester revenue is anticipated to be $40,000 for parking ($40x500x2) 
and $7,000 for labor costs, equating to $47,000; $2,865 more than in 2019.   

Prepared By: Brian Gruner, Recreation and Special Events Director  

Reviewed By: Siobhan Foster, COO 
Jose Campos, Interim Financial Services Director 

ATTACHMENT(S) 
ATT 1: GRF Emeritus Institute Non-Resident Parking Pass Resolution 90-19-49 
ATT 2: Proposed Resolution 90-21-XX  

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 2 of 4



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
Saddleback College Emeritus Institute Parking Fees  
December 7, 2021 
Page 3 
 
 

Attachment 1 

 
RESOLUTION 90-19-49 

 
WHEREAS, the Saddleback College Emeritus Institute provides educational services to 
residents and non-residents of Laguna Woods Village; and  
 
WHEREAS, a concern was raised that non-residents use the equipment and facilities during 
class time at no charge, while the residents pay monthly assessments to upkeep GRF 
property;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, October 1, 2019, that the Board of Directors of this 
Corporation hereby implements a Student Parking Pass Fee of $50 per semester ($30 for 
summer semester) for non-resident students who take Saddleback College Emeritus Institute 
courses in Laguna Woods Village, effective with the Spring Semester 2020 enrollment; and  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that such fees shall be used to defray the operational and 
administrative costs, and shall be collected during the time of student gate pass distribution; 
and  
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that Resolution 90-10-31 adopted May 4, 2010 is hereby superseded 
and cancelled; and 
  
RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby authorized 
on behalf of this Corporation to carry out the purpose of this Resolution. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October Initial Notification  
Should the Board endorse the proposed revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be made and 
seconded to accept the resolution and allow discussion to ensure that the resolution reads to the 
satisfaction of the Board. Staff then recommends that a Board Member postpones the resolution to the 
next available Board Meeting no less than 28-days from the postponement to comply with Civil Code 
§4360. 
 
 

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 3 of 4



Golden Rain Foundation of Laguna Woods 
Saddleback College Emeritus Institute Parking Fees  
December 7, 2021 
Page 4 
 
 

Attachment 2 

 
 

RESOLUTION 90-21-XX 
Saddleback College Emeritus Institute Parking Fee 

 
WHEREAS, the Saddleback College Emeritus Institute provides educational services 
to residents and non-residents of Laguna Woods Village, and; 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the GRF Board of Directors adopt resolution 90-21-XX 
to change non-resident parking fee equivalent to mirror District campus parking fees, 
and; 
 
WHEREAS, October 1, 2019, that the Board of Directors of this Corporation 
implemented a Student Parking Pass Fee of $50 per semester ($30 for summer 
semester) for non-resident students who take Saddleback College Emeritus Institute 
courses in Laguna Woods Village, effective with the spring Semester 2020 enrollment, 
and; 
 
WHEREAS, December 6, 2021, an agreement was accepted to match South Orange 
County Community College District (SOCCCD) campus parking fee which is $40 per 
semester ($25 for summer semester), subject to change each semester as per 
SOCCCD campus parking fees, and; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, December 7, 2021 the Board of Directors of 
this Corporation hereby adopts South Orange County Community College District 
(Saddleback College Emeritus Institute) parking fee of $40 per semester ($30 for 
summer semester), and; 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER, that this resolution shall be effective January 1, 2022, and 
Resolution 90-19-49 adopted November 1, 2019, is hereby superseded and canceled 
and fees updated according to this resolution, and;   
 
RESOLVED FURTHER; that the officers and agents of this Corporation are hereby 
authorized on behalf of the Corporation to carry out the purpose of this resolution. 

 
 
 
 

December Initial Notification 
Should the Board endorse the proposed revisions, Staff recommends that a motion be made and seconded to 
accept the resolution and allow discussion to ensure that the resolution reads to the satisfaction of the Board.  
Staff then recommends that a Board Member postpones the resolution to the next available Board Meeting no 
less than 28-days from the postponement to comply with Civil Code §4360. 

Agenda Item # 13b 
Page 4 of 4



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f O
ct

ob
er

 3
1,

 2
02

1

IN
CO

M
E 

ST
AT

EM
EN

T
(in

 th
ou

sa
nd

s)
AC

TU
AL

As
se

ss
m

en
t R

ev
en

ue
$2

6,
18

5

N
on

-A
ss

es
sm

en
t R

ev
en

ue
$1

0,
70

9

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

$3
6,

89
4

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

$3
3,

79
3

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

/(
Ex

pe
ns

e)
$3

,1
01

1
Ag

en
da

 It
em

 #
 1

5a
(1

) 
Pa

ge
 1

 o
f 1

2



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f O
ct

ob
er

 3
1,

 2
02

1 O
PE

RA
TI

N
G

 O
N

LY
 IN

CO
M

E 
ST

AT
EM

EN
T

(in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)

AC
TU

AL

As
se

ss
m

en
t R

ev
en

ue
$2

3,
76

5

N
on

-A
ss

es
sm

en
t R

ev
en

ue
$6

,9
45

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

$3
0,

71
0

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

1
$2

9,
28

5

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Su

rp
lu

s
$1

,4
25

1)
ex

cl
ud

es
 d

ep
re

ci
at

io
n

2
Ag

en
da

 It
em

 #
 1

5a
(1

) 
Pa

ge
 2

 o
f 1

2



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f O
ct

ob
er

 3
1,

 2
02

1

IN
CO

M
E 

ST
AT

EM
EN

T
(in

 T
ho

us
an

ds
)

AC
TU

AL
BU

DG
ET

VA
RI

AN
CE

B/
(W

)

As
se

ss
m

en
t R

ev
en

ue
$2

6,
18

5
$2

6,
18

5
$0

N
on

-A
ss

es
sm

en
t R

ev
en

ue
$1

0,
70

9
$1

1,
07

2
($

36
3)

To
ta

l R
ev

en
ue

$3
6,

89
4

$3
7,

25
7

($
36

3)

To
ta

l E
xp

en
se

$3
3,

79
3

$3
6,

83
6

$3
,0

43

N
et

 R
ev

en
ue

/(
Ex

pe
ns

e)
$3

,1
01

$4
21

$2
,6

80

3
Ag

en
da

 It
em

 #
 1

5a
(1

) 
Pa

ge
 3

 o
f 1

2



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f O
ct

ob
er

 3
1,

 2
02

1

4

($
59

2K
)

($
41

0K
)

($
40

0K
)

$2
,3

19
K

$1
,0

16
K

$2
97

K

($
10

00
K)

($
50

0K
)

$0
$5

00
,0

00
$1

,0
00

,0
00

$1
,5

00
,0

00
$2

,0
00

,0
00

$2
,5

00
,0

00

Em
pl

oy
ee

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
an

d 
Re

la
te

d 
Ex

p

Tr
us

t F
ac

ili
tie

s F
ee

s

Co
m

m
un

ity
 E

ve
nt

s

U
nr

ea
liz

ed
 G

ai
n/

(L
os

s)
 o

n 
AF

S 
In

ve
st

m
en

ts

Cl
ub

ho
us

e 
Re

nt
al

s a
nd

 E
ve

nt
 F

ee
s

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s R
ev

en
ue

U
nf

av
or

ab
le

Fa
vo

ra
bl

e

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

 1
5a

(1
) 

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 1
2



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f O
ct

ob
er

 3
1,

 2
02

1

5

To
ta

l N
on

-a
ss

es
sm

en
t

Re
ve

nu
e 

$1
0,

70
9,

38
1

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

 1
5a

(1
) 

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 1
2



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f O
ct

ob
er

 3
1,

 2
02

1

6
Ag

en
da

 It
em

 #
 1

5a
(1

) 
Pa

ge
 6

 o
f 1

2



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f O
ct

ob
er

 3
1,

 2
02

1

7

Re
sa

le
 H

is
to

ry
 —

Co
ns

ol
id

at
ed

02040608010
0

12
0

N
O

. O
F

RE
SA

LE
S

AV
G

. R
ES

AL
E 

PR
IC

E

YT
D 

20
19

 
69

4
$3

09
,8

64

YT
D

20
20

54
8

$3
17

,6
18

YT
D

20
21

86
0

$3
64

,3
79

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

 1
5a

(1
) 

Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 1
2



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f O
ct

ob
er

 3
1,

 2
02

1

8

FU
N

D
 B

AL
AN

CE
S

(in
 th

ou
sa

nd
s)

EN
D

IN
G

BA
LA

N
CE

W
O

RK
 IN

 
PR

O
G

RE
SS

AD
JU

ST
ED

 
BA

LA
N

CE
S

Eq
ui

pm
en

t
$4

,1
66

$8
13

$3
,3

53

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
21

,6
53

1,
95

1
19

,7
02

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y

2,
19

2
43

2,
14

9

Tr
us

t F
ac

ili
tie

s F
ee

s
3,

10
4

0
3,

10
4

TO
TA

L
$3

1,
11

5
$2

,8
07

$2
8,

30
8

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

 1
5a

(1
) 

Pa
ge

 8
 o

f 1
2



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f O
ct

ob
er

 3
1,

 2
02

1

9

Ad
ju

st
ed

 F
un

d 
Ba

la
nc

es

$0

$5
,0

00
,0

00

$1
0,

00
0,

00
0

$1
5,

00
0,

00
0

$2
0,

00
0,

00
0

$2
5,

00
0,

00
0

$3
0,

00
0,

00
0

$3
5,

00
0,

00
0

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

Eq
ui

pm
en

t F
un

d
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s F

un
d

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y 

Fu
nd

Tr
us

t F
ac

ili
tie

s F
ee

 F
un

d

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

 1
5a

(1
) 

Pa
ge

 9
 o

f 1
2



GR
F 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t

As
 o

f O
ct

ob
er

 3
1,

 2
02

1

10

FU
N

D
 E

N
CU

M
BR

AN
CE

S
(in

 th
ou

sa
nd

s)

To
ta

l A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

ns
Re

m
ai

ni
ng

 E
nc

um
br

an
ce

Aq
ua

tic
s &

 F
itn

es
s

$3
52

$5
0

Br
oa

db
an

d 
Se

rv
ic

es
72

8 
34

9

Cl
ub

ho
us

es
3,

24
7

57
5

Co
m

pu
te

rs
1,

09
8

57
4

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

en
te

r
61

9
14

3

En
er

gy
 P

ro
je

ct
s

85
0 

24
0

Go
lf 

Fa
ci

lit
ie

s
68

7 
62

9

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g

50
2 

34
2

O
th

er
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
30

0 
23

5

O
th

er
 G

RF
 F

ac
ili

tie
s

1,
83

1 
96

7

Pa
vi

ng
87

9 
22

Se
cu

rit
y

39
9 

24
4

Ve
hi

cl
es

1,
96

6
81

3

TO
TA

L
$1

3,
45

8
$5

,1
83

Ad
ju

st
ed

 F
un

d 
Ba

la
nc

es

Ag
en

da
 It

em
 #

 1
5a

(1
) 

Pa
ge

 1
0 

of
 1

2



  
Treasurer’s Report for December 7, 2021 Board Meeting 

 

Slide 1 – Through the reporting period of October 31, 2021, total revenue for GRF was $36.9M 
compared to expenses of $33.8M, resulting in net revenue of $3,101K.   
 
Slide 2 – In Finance, we keep a close eye on the operating portion of our financial results.  The Operating 
Fund (without Depreciation) shows a favorable variance of $1,425K through the reporting period.    
 
Slide 3 – This next chart shows the same actuals from the income statement, but compared to budget.  
GRF ended the period better than budget by $2,680K.  
 
Slide 4 – This slide shows our most significant variances by category with green bars representing 
favorable variances and orange bars representing unfavorable items.   

Favorable. Overall, we had variances in: 

• Employee Compensation and related expense - $2,319K, was primarily due to open positions in 
Security and Information Services; recruitment is in progress.  Also, certain Janitorial and 
Recreation positions remained unfilled while clubhouses were closed and fewer hours than 
budgeted in Transportation due to the consolidation of the commercial route earlier in the year. 

• Trust Facilities Fees - $1,016K, due to more manors sold.  Year-to-date revenue generated from 
the $5,000 per manor transfer fee is 33% higher than anticipated.  The community had 860 
resales versus a budget of 620; compared to 548 in 2020 for the same period. 

• Community Events Expense - $297K, due to facility closure during the pandemic; the budget 
assumed facilities would reopen in March, but actually opened June 15th based on State 
guidelines.  An offset can be found in Clubhouse rentals and event fees revenue. 

 
Unfavorable.  Some offsetting variance included: 

• Unrealized Gain/(Loss) on AFS Investments - ($592K), due to adverse conditions for bond 
investments during the reporting period.  An entry is made monthly to reflect investment 
market conditions, which fluctuate. 

• Clubhouse Rentals and Event Fees – ($410K), due to facility closure during the pandemic; the 
budget revenue assumed facilities would reopen in March.  All facilities opened June 15th based 
on state guidelines; room reservations are available for Clubhouses 1, 2, 5 and the Village 
Greens.  An offset can be found in the Community Events category. 

• Miscellaneous Revenue - ($400K), due to less fees collected during facility closures, including 
class fees, traffic violation fees, photo copy fees, auto decal fees, and bridge room guest fees.  
Classes are now ongoing. 

Agenda Item # 15a(1) 
Page 11 of 12



Slide 5 – We do have sources of revenue other than the assessments, such as fees and rentals.  To date, 
we have received just over $10.7M, as shown on this pie chart.  By category, we can see that our largest 
revenue is Broadband Services (i.e. Internet, set top boxes, premium channels), followed by Trust 
Facilities Fees ($5K transfer fee from resales) and Golf Revenue. These revenues offset costs and help 
keep assessments down. 

Slide 6 – Expenses to date of $33.8M, including depreciation, are shown on this pie chart with our 
largest categories being Compensation, Depreciation, Cable Programming, Insurance, Professional and 
Legal Fees, etc. 

Slide 7 – We have a slide here to show resale History from 2019-2021.  Community-wide sales total 860 
through October 2021.  Most of these transactions generate the $5K Trust Facilities Fee (transfer fee), 
used as a source of revenue for our reserves. 

Slide 8 – The reserve and contingency funds adjusted balances are shown here.   

• Starting with the 1st column on the left, the funds have a combined ending balance of $31.1M. 
Included in this total are contributions received this year through assessments, trust facilities 
fees, and investment earnings. 

• The 2nd column shows the work in progress of $2.8M, reflecting the amounts paid for projects 
not yet complete. 

• The 3rd column represents the resulting “adjusted” fund balances of $28.3M. 

Slide 9 – We compare our “adjusted” fund balances to historical balances for the past five years on this 
next chart, showing that GRF has averaged $28 million in reserve and contingency funds.  

Slide 10 –The listing on this slide gives you an idea where the reserve money is committed. Of the 
$13.5M appropriated by the Board for various projects and equipment purchases, the remaining 
encumbrances against our reserve and contingency funds is $5.2M, primarily for renovation projects. 

 

Agenda Item # 15a(1) 
Page 12 of 12



Agenda Item # 15e(1) 
Page 1 of 4



Agenda Item # 15e(1) 
Page 2 of 4



Agenda Item # 15e(1) 
Page 3 of 4



Agenda Item # 15e(1) 
Page 4 of 4

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY



IN OI NDATION 

Wooos 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
GOLDEN RAIN FOUNDATION 

MEDIA AND COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE 

Wednesday, November 17, 2021 - 2:30 p.m. 
Board Room/ Virtual Meeting 

REPORT 

Members Present: Chair Joan Milliman; Directors Elsie Addington, Deborah Dotson, James 
Cook, Annie McCary, Neda Ardani and Maggie Blackwell; Advisors Carmen Pacella and Juanita 

Skillman; Alternate Lynn Jarrett 

Members Absent: Director Ryna Rothberg; Advisors Theresa Frost, Tom Nash and Lucy 

Parker 

Others Present: Bunny Carpenter, Egon Garthoffner, Richard Rader 

Staff Present: Eileen Paulin, Paul Ortiz, Ellyce Rothrock, Susan Logan-McCracken 

1. Call to Order

Meeting was called to order at 2:32 p.m. and a quorum was established by Chair Milliman. 

2. Acknowledgement of Media

None present. 

3. Approval of Agenda

Approved by unanimous consent. 

4. Approval of Report for September 20, 2021

The report was approved with two abstentions from Directors Addington and Cook, who were 

not at the September 20 meeting. 

5. Chair's Remarks

Chair Milliman welcomed Director Cook and mentioned the board changes for Director 
Addington who is now on the GRF board, Director Blackwell who is now on the United board 

and Advisor Skillman who is now on the GRF board. 

6. Member Comments

Mr. Rader mentioned that he heard from a resident that several buildings in United Mutual were 
alerted to an upcoming water shutoff by notices nailed to trees adjacent to their units rather than 

Agenda Item # 15f 
Page 1 of 6



delivered to their mailboxes or residences. A discussion ensued. Ms. Paulin responded that it is 

most likely a city issue and will look into it. 

Ms. Rothrock read one emailed comment from Dale Lee, who asked how he could receive 

MBCD-18.3 channel. Mr. Ortiz responded that he would look into it and later addressed it in his 

Broadband Services report. 

Items for Discussion 

7. Media and Communications Report - Eileen Paulin

Ms. Paulin discussed: 

• Completion of the all-boards handbook, highlighting a digital version that includes links
• The all-boards training that took place November 15 with presentations by United Mutual

Legal Counsel Jeff Beaumont and VMS department heads

Advisor Skillman asked why Mutual 50 does not have a tab in the handbook and recommended 

including this mutual. Ms. Paulin answered that although Mutual 50 is not managed by VMS, the 

board members were invited to the general training and were given information about the GRF 

Trust, the condominium Bluebook, Robert's Rules and other tools. Ms. Paulin added that an all

boards directors list will be added to the handbook that will include Mutual 50. 

Ms. Paulin announced that Brittany Tuohy is now handling registrations for docent tours and 

new resident orientations. Docent tours began again on Oct. 28 and are currently scheduled at 

one per week due to staff and bus driver shortage. She anticipates the tours will go back to 

weekly plus one Saturday per month in 2022 if we have enough bus drivers. 

Ms. Paulin announced that new resident orientations have resumed in person. Board directors 

who enjoy speaking at them are encouraged to volunteer, but it is not required for all board 

members. 

Ms. Paulin welcomed each mutual's communications groups to plan on board representatives 

who will make Village Television appearances. Those who thrive at this are encouraged to 

volunteer, but it is not required. Look for longer presentations and more visuals in 2022. 

Ms. Paulin stated that the top priorities for next year are the website and Village survey. The 

Strategic Planning Committee and each mutual will play an important role in planning the 

survey. 

Ms. Paulin stated that meetings with The Broadband Group consultant are underway. 

Ms. Paulin highlighted the Recognition of Excellence awards videos and the VMS employees 

including the Broadband Services team who received them. 

Director Dotson confirmed that the Strategic Planning Committee will provide input for the 

survey. She also recommended highlighting the Recognition of Excellence awards on a 

webpage that focuses on compliments regarding VMS employees. 

Mr. Rader asked if Mr. Beaumont's presentation on the GRF Trust was recorded. Ms. Paulin 

answered that it was recorded and will be available on YouTube. Since the meeting, the 

recording has been posted here. 

Agenda Item # 15f 
Page 2 of 6



Advisor Skillman stated she enjoyed the employee award videos and inquired if these are 
available. Ms. Paulin answered that these are available on YouTube and will be shared in the 
"What's Up in the Village" e-newsletter. The video can be viewed here. 

8. Broadband Services Report - Paul Ortiz

Mr. Ortiz presented a Broadband Services update that included: 

• 2021 year-to-date cable operation report
• 2021 year-to-date Broadband Services operation report
• Expiring programming contracts report
• Channels expiring as of January 1, 2022: NBC Sports Network, ESPN Classic
• Broadband subscriber count report
• Programming contracts forecast report
• Internet subscriptions

Director McCary inquired about feedback regarding these channels that are going dark. Mr. 
Ortiz discussed the cost savings and customer service that may be required to help residents 
scan their channels during the next channel map change. He highlighted Sundance TV, which is 

owned by AMC, as a channel residents would enjoy that will become available at no cost after 
the next channel map change. 

Answering Mr. Lee's question during the open forum, Mr. Ortiz stated that MBC America is a 
Korean over-the-air station. We can add channel 18.3 to our channel lineup and it would be 
available as channel 82 during the next channel map change. 

Advisor Skillman suggested addressing channels going dark with as much explicit publicity as 
possible to assure residents that this is out of board and staff control. Mr. Ortiz responded that 
this will be promoted throughout November and December. 

Director McCary asked about the Playboy adult channel on the subscriber count report. Mr. 
Ortiz explained that although we cut two pay-per-event adult channels, Playboy is a pay-per

month channel that is part of the NCTC programming package. 

Director Cook inquired about TiVo, as to whether residents have to purchase chip and if there is 

a monthly fee on top of that. Mr. Ortiz explained there is a one-time fee for the cable card, which 
came down in price, and a subscription fee of $5 per month. 

Mr. Rader asked how streaming might affect advertising sales. Mr. Ortiz responded that this will 
likely affect advertising. 

Mr. Garthoffner mentioned his recordings end one minute sooner than the program he records. 
Mr. Ortiz recommended setting up the recording to go five or 10 minutes longer than the 
program. 

Director Addington asked it if non-assessment revenue is mostly advertising. Mr. Ortiz 
answered that it's mostly equipment rental, but advertising is part of it. 

Director Cook asked from a resident email whether anything in the new infrastructure bill can 
help improve our broadband internet access. Mr. Ortiz responded that at this time we don't 

know the specifics, but discussions with The Broadband Group consultant may provide insights. 

Agenda Item # 15f 
Page 3 of 6



Mr. Ortiz mentioned programming residents asked about, a channel called NewsMax. NCTC 

has a contract with NewsMax that makes it free, but because of the channel's traction, they're 

going to charge for the channel in the next contract. 

Directors Addington, Blackwell and Dotson mentioned the sound volume on Zoom and 

discussion ensued. 

Ms. Paulin mentioned that a meeting report from Mr. Ortiz in an upcoming meeting will show 

significant cost savings. 

Items for Future Agendas 

• Focus groups for website
• Review and revise the Village website usage policy

• Community survey

Concluding Business 

Committee Member Comments 

Advisor Skillman expressed that a website redesign will be wonderful for the community. 

Director Blackwell recommended reading Director Addington's HO6 article that ran in the Village 

Breeze. 

Directors McCary and Addington commended the meeting. 

Director Cook said he is happy to be part of the committee and looks forward to future meetings. 

Ms. Paulin said she sent Director Cook The Broadband Group's report, "Laguna Woods Village 

Cable System Assessment and Business Case Scenarios." 

Ms. Rothrock commented that it is nice to see everyone. 

Ms. McCracken discussed the microphone volume in the board room vs. Zoom. 

Director Dotson commended the meeting. Responding to a social media comment, she stated 

that 5 M Bps is the lowest internet speed WCI provides and that is enough to broadcast a movie. 

She added that we have really good internet speed for the price that we pay and that not 

everyone needs 300 MBps for the prices that would be charged. She stated we have plenty of 

bandwidth and speed here for what our residents want to do. 

Advisor Pacella thanked everyone for an excellent meeting and good presentations. He looks 

forward to meeting in person again. 

Mr. Ortiz thanked everyone. 

Director Jarrett thanked everyone for an informative meeting. 

Director Ardani thanked everyone for the information. She asked Ms. Rothrock whether she 

received the United chargeable services for the Village Breeze, to which Ms. Rothrock 

confirmed that she received it. 

GRF Board President Carpenter commended the meeting and expressed appreciation for all the 

information that was given. 

Agenda Item # 15f 
Page 4 of 6



Chair Milliman stated it was lovely to have everyone there. She welcomed the new directors, 

adding that we're going to have a good year, which is already beginning. She looks forward to 
hopefully meeting in person next month. 

Date of Next Meeting - Monday, December 20, 2021 

Adjournment 

Chair Milliman adjourned the meeting at 3:48 p.m. 

________________________________ 
Joan Milliman, Chair 
Media and Communications Committee 

Agenda Item # 15f 
Page 5 of 6



Agenda Item # 15f 
Page 6 of 6

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK


	GRF Board Agenda 2021-12-07 OPEN R2
	OPEN SESSION
	Virtual Meeting
	NOTICE OF THE AGENDA
	1. Call Meeting to Order / Establish Quorum – President Carpenter
	2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Skillman
	3. Acknowledgment of Media
	4. Approval of Agenda
	5. Approval of Minutes
	6. Report of the   Chair
	7. Election by Acclimation – Reza Karimi
	8. CEO/COO Report
	9. Open Forum (Three Minutes per Speaker)
	10. Responses to Open Forum Speakers
	11. Consent Calendar
	12. Unfinished Business
	13. New Business
	15. Committee Reports
	17. Directors’ Comments
	Closed Session Agenda
	19. Adjournment

	5a GRF Meet the Candidates 2021-29-10 (Final-approved)
	5b GRF Board Minutes 2021-11-02  OPEN (Final-approved)
	Blank Page

	5c 57th Organizational Meeting Minutes 2021-11-10 (Final-approved)
	7 Election by Acclamation
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

	Blank Page

	12a SR Equestrian Center Arena Rental 10142021FINAL
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION:
	Review and recommend board approval of the proposed outside vendor rental rates for the Equestrian Center to host event horse shows, clinics and individual rentals beginning January 1, 2022.
	BACKGROUND:
	On August 24, 2021 the GRF Equestrian Ad Hoc Committee held a special pricing policy and fee review meeting to determine fee adequacy, fair costs to boarders and revenue assumptions. All equestrian fees were reviewed and staff was directed to establis...
	DISCUSSION:
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	12b Equestrian Center Policy and Pricing SR R2
	12c 2021-11-02 Staff Report_Investment Policy Change
	12d Resolution 90-21-xx GRF Committee Appointments
	RESOLUTION 90-21-xx
	Equestrian Center Ad Hoc Committee
	Finance Committee
	Maintenance & Construction Committee
	Clubhouse Renovation Ad Hoc Committee
	Broadband Ad Hoc Committee
	Mobility & Vehicles Committee
	Security and Community Access
	Disaster Preparedness Task Force

	13a Bridge Painting GRF 2021-12-07
	SR Bridge Painting for GRF 2021-12-7.pdf
	STAFF REPORT
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	The Clubhouse 7 bridge room is a large open floor room with 60 bridge tables and a kitchen.  The Duplicate and Progressive Bridge clubs host social games, tournaments, meetings and banquets with an annual utilization of approximately 48,000 users.
	DISCUSSION
	FINANCIAL ANALYSIS


	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	15a(1) Oct 2021 GRF Treasurer's Report
	GRF Financial Report�As of October 31, 2021
	GRF Financial Report�As of October 31, 2021
	GRF Financial Report�As of October 31, 2021
	GRF Financial Report�As of October 31, 2021
	GRF Financial Report�As of October 31, 2021
	GRF Financial Report�As of October 31, 2021
	GRF Financial Report�As of October 31, 2021
	GRF Financial Report�As of October 31, 2021
	GRF Financial Report�As of October 31, 2021
	GRF Financial Report�As of October 31, 2021

	15e(1) GRF CH 1 Renovation Ad Hoc Committee Report 10-29-2021 FINAL
	Blank Page

	15f GRF-Media-and-Communications-Committee-Meeting-Report-11-17-2021
	Blank Page

	GRF Board Agenda 2021-12-07 OPEN R3.pdf
	OPEN SESSION
	Virtual Meeting
	NOTICE OF THE AGENDA
	1. Call Meeting to Order / Establish Quorum – President Carpenter
	2. Pledge of Allegiance – Director Skillman
	3. Acknowledgment of Media
	4. Approval of Agenda
	5. Approval of Minutes
	6. Report of the   Chair
	7. Election by Acclimation – Reza Karimi
	8. CEO/COO Report
	9. Open Forum (Three Minutes per Speaker)
	10. Responses to Open Forum Speakers
	11. Consent Calendar
	12. Unfinished Business
	13. New Business
	15. Committee Reports
	17. Directors’ Comments
	Closed Session Agenda
	19. Adjournment




